

Jacqui Sinnott-Lacey Chief Operating Officer

52 Derby Street Ormskirk West Lancashire L39 2DF

Tuesday, 28 March 2023

TO: THE MAYOR AND COUNCILLORS

Dear Councillor,

You are summoned to a meeting of the **COUNCIL** to be held in the **COUNCIL CHAMBER**, **52 DERBY STREET**, **ORMSKIRK L39 2DF** on **WEDNESDAY**, **5 APRIL 2023** at **7.30 PM** at which your attendance is requested.

Yours faithfully

Jacqui Sinnott-Lacey Chief Operating Officer

AGENDA (Open to the Public)

PAGE(S)

1. PRAYERS

2. APOLOGIES

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

If a member requires advice on Declarations of Interest, he/she is advised to contact the Legal and Democratic Services Manager in advance of the meeting. (For the assistance of members a checklist for use in considering their position on any particular item is included at the end of this agenda sheet.)

4.	MINUTES To receive as a correct record, the minutes of the previous meeting held on Wednesday, 22 February 2023.	999 - 1022
5.	ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE MAYOR AND/OR THE CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER	
6.	TO ANSWER ANY QUESTIONS UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 10.2	
7.	MINUTES OF COMMITTEES To receive the minutes of the following meetings, to confirm, if appropriate, such of the minutes as require confirmation and to pass such resolutions as the Council may deem necessary:	
a)	Tawd Valley Developments Shareholders Committee - Wednesday, 15 February 2023	1023 - 1026
b)	Planning Committee - Thursday, 16 February 2023	1027 - 1030
c)	Budget / Council Plan Committee - Tuesday, 28 February 2023	1031 - 1034
d)	Standards Committee - Tuesday, 14 March 2023	1035 - 1038
e)	Planning Committee - Thursday, 16 March 2023	1039 - 1044
8.	PLANNING SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICY To consider the report of the Corporate Director Transformation, Housing & Resources.	1045 - 1068
9.	CORPORATE HEALTH & SAFETY ANNUAL REPORT To consider the report of the Corporate Director of Transformation, Housing & Resources.	1069 - 1084
10.	CHANGE OF GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS DRAFT TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR COMMITTEES To consider the report of Simon Goacher, Independent Legal Advisor on behalf of the Chief Operating Officer.	1085 - 1094
11.	INTERIM AUDITOR FINDINGS REPORT FOR WEST LANCASHIRE 2020-21 To consider the report of the Corporate Director of Transformation, Housing & Resources.	1095 - 1156
12.	HRA - DAMP AND MOULD STRATEGY To consider the report of the Corporate Director of Transformation, Housing & Resources.	1157 - 1172
13.	MOTIONS To consider the following Motions included on the agenda at the request of the Members indicated:	

a) Local Government Pay to Council: A Fully Funded, Proper Pay Rise for Council and School Workers - Motion from Councillor Gareth Dowling

"This council notes:

Local government has endured central government funding cuts of more than 50% since 2010. Between 2010 and 2020, councils lost 60p out of every £1 they have received from central government. Councils across England are now facing a collective funding gap of £2.4bn for the financial year 2023/24 and a cumulative funding gap of £4.08bn for 2024/25 according to UNISON research.

Councils led the way in efforts against the Covid-19 pandemic, providing a huge range of services and support for our communities. Local government has shown more than ever how indispensable it is. But Covid has led to a massive increase in expenditure and loss of income, and as we emerge from the pandemic, local authorities and schools need far more support from Westminster. Recent funding announcements from the Government relating to schools did nothing to help.

Council and school workers kept our communities safe through the pandemic, often putting themselves at considerable risk as they work to protect public health, provide quality housing, ensure our children continue to be educated, and look after older and vulnerable people.

Since 2010, the local government workforce has endured years of pay restraint with the majority of pay points losing at least 25 per cent of their value since 2009/10. Staff are now facing the worst cost of living crisis in a generation, with inflation hitting 10% and many having to make impossible choices between food, heating and other essentials. This is a terrible situation for anyone to find themselves in.

At the same time, workers have experienced ever-increasing workloads and persistent job insecurity. Across the UK, 900,000 jobs have been lost in local government since June 2010 – a reduction of more than 30 per cent. Local government has arguably been hit by more severe job losses than any other part of the public sector.

There has been a disproportionate impact on women, with women making up more than three-quarters of the local government workforce.

Recent research shows that if the Government were to fully fund the unions' 2023 pay claim, around half of the money would be recouped thanks to increased tax revenue, reduced expenditure on benefits and tax credits, and increased consumer spending in the local economy.

This council believes:

Our workers are public service super-heroes. They keep our

communities clean and safe, look after those in need and keep our towns and cities running.

Without the professionalism and dedication of our staff, the council services our residents rely on would not be deliverable.

Local government workers deserve a proper real-terms pay increase. The Government needs to take responsibility and fully fund this increase; it should not put the burden on local authorities whose funding has been cut to the bone and who were not offered adequate support through the Covid-19 pandemic.

This council resolves to:

Support the pay claim submitted by UNISON, GMB and Unite on behalf of council and school workers, for an increase of RPI + 2%

Call on the Local Government Association to make urgent representations to central government to fund the NJC pay claim

Write to the Chancellor and Secretary of State to call for a pay increase for local government workers to be funded with new money from central government

Meet with local NJC union representatives to convey support for the pay claim and consider practical ways in which the council can support the campaign

Encourage all local government workers to join a union."

b) Ormskirk - Burscough Linear Park - Motion Included by Councillors Mitchell, Thompson and Clandon

"Council notes that further progress has been made on the Ormskirk-Burscough linear park with the completion of the new High Grove Park housing estate.

Council considers that the linear park will ultimately provide a positive benefit encouraging walking and cycling in a safer environment while providing a wildlife corridor. However, Council expresses its disappointment that the section of the Ormskirk - Burscough linear park between Abbey Lane in Burscough and Ormskirk remains incomplete.

Council instructs Cabinet to bring a report to the July 2023 council meeting updating councillors on the whole project and, in particular at this stage of the project, the steps taken to complete the section between Ormskirk and Abbey Lane in Burscough."

c) Tree Preservation Orders Enforcement – Motion Included by Councillor Kate Mitchell

"Council notes that many complaints are received from members of the public regarding the felling of mature and established trees in relation to development or future development sites. Council further notes that unless trees are specifically identified or have a Tree Protection Order (TPO) already in place then they are open season for developers to remove in favour of their housing plan.

Council believes that with the Council's acknowledgement of a climate change emergency and its firm pledge to address it, that more trees being lost at the hands of developers who, instead of 'working' around existing trees within the site that are performing an essential environmental job of sucking up excess water and cleansing our air, remove these trees to enable a few more properties to be squeezed in to enhance their profits.

This practice contradicts the Council's Climate Emergency objectives and that replacement planting of young saplings cannot be sufficient mitigation for the trees that have been lost.

That officers bring a report to Planning Committee in May/June 2023 and full Council in July 2023 to develop and introduce more robust tree protection measures and conditions to be placed on ALL future development applications to better protect mature and established trees."

We can provide this document, upon request, on audiotape, in large print, in Braille and in other languages.

FIRE EVACUATION PROCEDURE: Please see attached sheet. MOBILE PHONES: These should be switched off or to 'silent' at all meetings.

For further information, please contact:-Jacky Denning on 01695 585384 Or email jacky.denning@westlancs.gov.uk

FIRE EVACUATION PROCEDURE FOR: COUNCIL MEETINGS WHERE OFFICERS ARE PRESENT (52 DERBY STREET, ORMSKIRK)

PERSON IN CHARGE:Most Senior Officer PresentZONE WARDEN:Member Services Officer / LawyerDOOR WARDEN(S)Usher / Caretaker

IF YOU DISCOVER A FIRE

- 1. Operate the nearest **FIRE CALL POINT** by breaking the glass.
- 2. Attack the fire with the extinguishers provided only if you have been trained and it is safe to do so. **Do not** take risks.

ON HEARING THE FIRE ALARM

- 1. Leave the building via the **NEAREST SAFE EXIT. Do not stop** to collect personal belongings.
- 2. Proceed to the **ASSEMBLY POINT** on the car park and report your presence to the **PERSON IN CHARGE.**
- 3. **Do NOT** return to the premises until authorised to do so by the PERSON IN CHARGE.

NOTES:

Officers are required to direct all visitors regarding these procedures i.e. exit routes and place of assembly.

The only persons not required to report to the Assembly Point are the Door Wardens.

CHECKLIST FOR PERSON IN CHARGE

- 1. Advise other interested parties present that you are the person in charge in the event of an evacuation.
- 2. Make yourself familiar with the location of the fire escape routes and informed any interested parties of the escape routes.
- 3. Make yourself familiar with the location of the assembly point and informed any interested parties of that location.
- 4. Make yourself familiar with the location of the fire alarm and detection control panel.
- 5. Ensure that the zone warden and door wardens are aware of their roles and responsibilities.
- 6. Arrange for a register of attendance to be completed (if considered appropriate / practicable).

IN THE EVENT OF A FIRE, OR THE FIRE ALARM BEING SOUNDED

- 1. Ensure that the room in which the meeting is being held is cleared of all persons.
- 2. Evacuate via the nearest safe Fire Exit and proceed to the **ASSEMBLY POINT** in the car park.
- 3. Delegate a person at the **ASSEMBLY POINT** who will proceed to **HOME CARE LINK** in order to ensure that a back-up call is made to the **FIRE BRIGADE**.
- 4. Delegate another person to ensure that **DOOR WARDENS** have been posted outside the relevant Fire Exit Doors.

- 5. Ensure that the **ZONE WARDEN** has reported to you on the results of his checks, **i.e.** that the rooms in use have been cleared of all persons.
- 6. If an Attendance Register has been taken, take a **ROLL CALL**.
- 7. Report the results of these checks to the Fire and Rescue Service on arrival and inform them of the location of the **FIRE ALARM CONTROL PANEL**.
- 8. Authorise return to the building only when it is cleared to do so by the **FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE OFFICER IN CHARGE**. Inform the **DOOR WARDENS** to allow re-entry to the building.

NOTE:

The Fire Alarm system will automatically call the Fire Brigade. The purpose of the 999 back-up call is to meet a requirement of the Fire Precautions Act to supplement the automatic call.

CHECKLIST FOR ZONE WARDEN

- 1. Carry out a physical check of the rooms being used for the meeting, including adjacent toilets, kitchen.
- 2. Ensure that **ALL PERSONS**, both officers and members of the public are made aware of the **FIRE ALERT**.
- 3. Ensure that ALL PERSONS evacuate IMMEDIATELY, in accordance with the FIRE EVACUATION PROCEDURE.
- 4. Proceed to the **ASSEMBLY POINT** and report to the **PERSON IN CHARGE** that the rooms within your control have been cleared.
- 5. Assist the **PERSON IN CHARGE** to discharge their duties.

It is desirable that the **ZONE WARDEN** should be an **OFFICER** who is normally based in this building and is familiar with the layout of the rooms to be checked.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR DOOR WARDENS

- 1. Stand outside the FIRE EXIT DOOR(S)
- 2. Keep the **FIRE EXIT DOOR SHUT.**
- 3. Ensure that **NO PERSON**, whether staff or public enters the building until **YOU** are told by the **PERSON IN CHARGE** that it is safe to do so.
- 4. If anyone attempts to enter the premises, report this to the **PERSON IN CHARGE.**
- 5. Do not leave the door **UNATTENDED.**